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BEFORE THE PUBLIC UTILITY COMMISSION 

OF OREGON   

UM 1224 
 

In the Matter of  
 
UTILITY REFORM PROJECT and KEN 
LEWIS, 
 
Application for Deferred Accounting. 

  
 
STAFF’S OPENING BRIEF  

I.  INTRODUCTION 

In Order No. 07-351 the Commission granted a deferred accounting application filed by 

Utility Reform Project (URP) and Ken Lewis.  The Commission found that the passage of SB 

408 was an unexpected event with impact sufficient to warrant the exercise of the Commission’s 

discretion in granting the deferral.  Id. at 7.  The Commission directed Portland General Electric 

Company (PGE or Company) to  
 

“calculate the deferred amount using the methodologies for determining taxes 
collected and taxes paid adopted in OAR 860-022-0041.   By December 1, 2007, 
PGE shall make a filing that contains the calculation of the deferral amount and 
the earnings test, so that the Commission can make a determination for a rate 
adjustment concurrent with the first automatic adjustment clause rate change 
currently scheduled for June 1, 2008.”   

Id. at 7-8 (emphasis in original).  The Commission also indicated that it would review PGE’s 

earnings at the time it considers amortization of the deferral citing ORS 757.259(5).  Id. at 8.   

PGE filed testimony that used three methods to calculate the deferred amount.  However, 

only one is consistent with OAR 860-022-0041 as directed in Order No. 07-351.  PGE’s 

calculation that uses the SB 408 methodology calculates the deferral at $26.6 million.  Staff 

agreed with the Company’s analysis with one minor adjustment that reduces the deferral to $26.5 

million.1  PGE indicated in its rebuttal testimony that it agrees with Staff’s adjustment.  See PGE 

                                                 
1 Staff adjusted the taxes paid and the taxes collected regarding the deferred amount for Multnomah income tax.  See 
Staff/100, Owings/3.   
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Exhibit 200/Hager-Tamlyn-Tinker/2-3.  Thus, both the Company and Staff agree that the deferral 

amount is $26.5 million following the SB 408 methodology.2    

Regarding the earnings test applied to the method discussed above, the evidence shows 

that PGE’s earnings are several hundred basis points below its authorized rate of return.  

Accordingly, Staff believes that the Commission should not require PGE to amortize the deferred 

amount due to the outcome of PGE’s earning test.   

 As noted above, PGE’s testimony includes two alternative methods that consider what 

the Company terms the “double whammy.”  Both alternatives are inconsistent with the 

methodologies for determining taxes collected and taxes paid adopted in OAR 860-022-0041.  

Accordingly, they are contrary to Commission’s directions in Order No. 07-351.    

II.   DISCUSSION 

a.  Calculation of deferred amount  

 Staff and the Company agree that the deferral amount is $26.5 million using the SB 408 

methodology.       

b.  Earnings test  

 The Commission indicated that it would review PGE’s earnings at the time it considers 

amortization of the deferral citing ORS 757.259(5).  Id. at 8.  Order No. 93-257 (Dockets UE 

82/UM 445), contains the Commission’s most thorough discussion of the earnings test 

standards.  The order refers to Exhibit A of an adopted stipulation and standards for earnings test. 

Id. at 9.  That exhibit, attached to the order as Appendix A, describes alternative earnings test 

standards for both deferred costs and deferred refund amounts.  A copy of Order No. 93-257 and 

Appendix A are attached.  Staff requests that the Commission take official notice of these 

documents pursuant to OAR 860-014-0050(1)(c).  Refunds would be required only to the extent 

earnings for the deferral period would fall below a minimum reasonable rate of return after the 

                                                 
2 Neither URP nor Ken Lewis filed testimony.  
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 refund or, alternatively, would exceed a maximum reasonable rate of return without the refund.  

See Appendix A at 8. 

Here, Staff found that PGE’s earnings provided approximately 6.92% return on equity, 

more than 450 basis points below the authorized return of 10.5% ROE.  See Staff /100, 

Owings/1-2.  And if the Company was required to refund the $26.5 million related to this 

deferral, its earnings would provide 6.11% overall rate of return and 5.28% ROE.  See Staff 

Exhibit/100, Owings/8; Staff Exhibit/102, Owings/1, Column 4.  Thus, the evidence shows that 

PGE's earnings are well below even the minimum reasonable level, so the Commission should 

not require any refunds (that would only serve to drop the earnings further).  See Staff/100, 

Owings/3. 

c.  PGE’s alternative methodologies  

PGE argues that because this deferral is under ORS 757.259 and the Commission has 

broad authority to determine how to calculate any deferral amount associated with the deferral 

period, the Commission should consider alternatives to the SB 408 methodology because of the 

“double whammy” problem and various asymmetries.  See PGE Exhibit 100/Hager-Tamlyn-

Tinker/10.  PGE, citing Order No. 06-532, argues the Commission indicated that it would 

consider “double whammy” in the context of other proceedings.  See PGE Exhibit 100/Hager-

Tamlyn-Tinker/10.  Under PGE’s alternative methodologies the deferred amount would be either 

zero or $20.9 million.  See PGE Exhibit 200/Hager-Tamlyn-Tinker/3.      

Staff agrees with PGE that this is a deferral under ORS 757.259.3  But, as PGE 

acknowledges, the Commission has broad authority to determine how to calculate the deferral 

amount.  The Commission here exercised its discretion when it determined that the Company 

should “calculate the deferred amount using the methodologies for determining taxes collected 

and taxes paid adopted in OAR 860-022-0041.”  Order No. 07-351 at 8. (emphasis in original). 

                                                 
3 See Order No. 07-351 at 7-8.   
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PGE neither argues nor shows that the Commission abused its discretion in directing the 

Company to calculate the deferral amount based on the SB 408 methodology.    

Moreover, the Company makes no persuasive case showing why the Commission needs 

to consider the “double whammy” in this proceeding.  The Company itself acknowledges that 

regardless of the method the Commission chooses to calculate the deferral, the PGE’s earnings 

are so far below the authorized rate of return during the earnings period, no amortization should 

occur.  See PGE Exhibit 100/Hager-Tamlyn-Tinker/2, 13, 16.  If there is no amortization 

regardless of the method the Commission chooses to calculate the deferral, then there is no 

reason for the Commission to consider or decide the company’s “double whammy” arguments 

here.          

III.   CONCLUSION       

   For the reasons discussed above, the Commission should calculate the deferral at $26.5 

million, but it should not require amortization of the deferral because the Company’s earnings 

are far below its authorized rate of return during the earnings period.   

  DATED this 14th day of April 2008. 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
HARDY MYERS 
Attorney General 
 
s/David B. Hatton_____________ 
David B. Hatton, #75151 
Assistant Attorney General 
Of Attorneys for Staff of the Public Utility 
Commission of Oregon 
 
 
 

  
 

 






























































